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Achewon Nimat Lodge Charter  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Original Achewon Nimat Charter from 1965  
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Geographical Coverage  
 

Achewon Nimat Lodge 282 is located in Northern California and is the Order of the Arrow Lodge for 

the San Francisco Bay Area Council, Boy Scouts of America.  The SFBAC covers almost 1000 sq 

miles in area and is headquartered in the City of San Leandro, ten  miles south of downtown 

Oakland.  The Council and Lodge encompass the following areas in Northern California.  

 

San Francisco County :  

¶ Daly City  

¶ San Francisco  

 

Alameda County :  

¶ Castro Valley  

¶ Dublin  

¶ Fremont   

¶ Hayward  

¶ Livermore  

¶ Newark   

¶ Oakland  

¶ Pleasanton  

¶ San Leandro  

¶ San Lorenzo  

¶ Sunol  
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Achewon Nimat (Our Founding)  
 

Achewon Nimat was formed in the early 1960ôs by the merger of 

Machek NôGult Lodge 375 and Royaneh Lodge  282 .  The first 

meeting &  gathering of Achewon Nimat was held on Sunday 

afternoon, December 13, 1964 at Goodmanôs Restaurant in 

Oaklandôs Jack London Square and was attended by over 300 

members (199 from Machek NôGult lodge and 105 from Royaneh 

lodge).  The banquet and lodge elect ions  marked the official start of the new ñas yet to be named 

lodgeò of the San Francisco Bay Area Council. 

 

Almost 11 months earlier in February of 1964 in a ceremony held atop 

Yerba Buena Island in the middle of San Francisco bay, the Oakland 

Area Counci l and the San Francisco Council would merge forming the 

San Francisco Bay Area Council thereby uniting 30,000 Scouts from 

both sides of the bay.  With the merging of the two councils, so too 

would the Order of the Arrow Lodges associated with the former 

councils, Machek NôGult Lodge of the Oakland Area Council and Royaneh 

Lodge of the San Francisco Council.  

 

Although the two lodges technically merged at the banquet, January 1, 

1965 is the official date of the merger  and the establishment of 

Achewon Nimat .  Larry Teshara (former National Deputy Chief) from 

Royaneh Lodge acted as the master of ceremonies during the luncheon 

and was assisted by the past lodge chiefs for Machek NôGult (Dennis 

Haw) and Royaneh (Jeff Baechler).  The number for the new lodge would be 282 as it was common 

practice for merged lodges to take the lower of the two lodge numbers.  At this same banquet the 

lodge number 375 for Machek NôGult was retired and removed 

from the National Charter of Order of the Arrow Lodges.  After 

the luncheon was over, a special meeting was held to elect 

Lodge officers for the new lodge.  Bill Garvine from Machek 

NôGult Lodge was elected as the first chief of the new combined 

lodge.  It had also been decided prior to the banquet to split the 

Lodge into two chap ters, Royaneh Chapter for the West Bay 

(San Francisco region) and Machek NôGult Chapter for the 

East Bay (Oakland region) .  The name, totems, patch design and 

bylaws for the new lodge however would not be selected and adopted until the first business 

meeting could be held for the new lodge a couple months later on February 28, 1965.   

 

Although the be ginning of Achewon Nimat lodge started on that afternoon of Sunday, December 

13, 1964, our history in the Order of the Arrow actually began some twenty years earlier in 1944 

when Royaneh Lodge was officially formed in the San Francisco Council and then three years later 

when Machek NôGult Lodge was formed in the Oakland Council.  So to talk about the history of 

Achewon Nimat we canôt forget about the hundreds of arrowmen and thousands of scouts that 

actually started the journey 70 years before us in the lodges of Machek NôGult and Royaneh and 

the councils of Oakland and San Francisco.  

 

Although our lodge is now called Achewon Nimat (meaning Brothers  Together), our real beginnings 

in the Order of the Arrow started at a camp in the hills of Oakland called ñDimondò and at a camp 

near Cazadero called ñCC Mooreò.  Here then, is Our Story  of Achewon Nimat Lodge 282.  
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San Francisco Council  
 

Scout troops in San Francisco began forming in September of 1910 only a mere 

seven months after William D. Boyce formed the Boy Scouts of America.  In fact 

the oldest active troop in San Francisco is Troop 3 that was formed in May 1914  

and still continues to be active almost 100 years later.  However it wasnôt until 

November of 1916 that the San Francisco Council was officially organized into a 

first class council by a group of prominent San Francisco businessmen and leaders.  

Until the  San Francisco Council was organized, San Francisco troops were chartered through the 

Los Angeles council (which until 1925 was known as the Centinela Council).  

 

During its first 20 years from 1917 until 1937, Scout Executive Raymond O Hanson (affectionately 

known as ñThe Chiefò) was a visionary in youth programs who led the San Francisco organization.  

In fact in April of 1925 Hanson invited a group of Eagle Scout s to his office to discuss the idea of 

creating a youth organization which would hold the interest of scouts that attained the rank of 

Eagle.  The Eagle Scout association they created that night was known as the Knights of Dunamis 

and spread like lightning  across the Country as other Councils got involved.   

 

The idea to create an Eagle Scout association in San Francisco came from Scout Exec Homer 

Bemiss acro ss the bay in the Oakland Area Council.  The Oakland Council had already created its 

own Eagle Scout  association at Camp Dimond in 1922 that was called the Tribe of the O-hit -e-kah  

which lasted until 1935.  As Bemiss and Hanson  were good friends (Bemiss was the Assistant Scout 

Exec for Hanson  from 1917 until 1919) they shared many ideas of Scouting  throu gh the years .  

Hanson  took the Oakland Eagle association idea, expanded it and created the Knights of Dunamis 

for the San Francisco Council in 1925.  By 1935, only ten years after that first meeting, the Knights 

of Dunamis was officially designated as part  of the scouting program.  The Eagle association in 

Oakland was disbanded and became one of the Chapters of the Knights of Dunamis.  During that 

same year, a ceremony was held in San Francisco and attended by Robert Baden -Powell (Chief 

Scout of the World) where an honorary life membership in the Knights of Dunamis was conferred 

upon him.  In 1971, the National Council of the Boy Scouts of America formerly accepted 

administration of the Knights of Dunamis which then became the National Eagle Scout Associatio n 

(NESA).  

 

In 1925, Hanson was also instrumental in acquiring land in the hills near Cazadero, California that 

would become Camp Royaneh and land near Fairfax, California that would become Camp Lilienthal.  

Camp Royaneh (renamed Camp CC Moore between 1938  and 1950) is still considered one of the 

oldest operating Scout Camps West of the Mississippi.   

 

Camp Royaneh was the main summer camp for the San Francisco Council while Camp Lilienthal 

was known as the all -weather camp of the council.  During the winter and spring months from 

1925 until 1950 Camp Royaneh could not be used as the road into camp crossed East Austin creek 

which during the winter turned into a raging river and was inaccessible.  Camp Lilienthal on the 

other hand was an all ye ar camp that was close to San Francisco that the council could use at any 

time.  It is this reason that the Order of the Arrow in the San Francisco Council had its beginnings 

at Camp Lilienthal.  
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Royaneh Lodge (Founded November 1944)  
 

Twenty -eight year s after the San Francisco Council was 

organized, the Order of the Arrow in San Francisco was officially 

established on November 29, 1944.  This took place at the 

monthly executive board meeting held at the San Francisco 

Council office at 105 Montgomery Str eet, when a motion was 

made by board member William Wollner and approved by the 

board to apply for a national charter to form an Order of the 

Arrow lodge.  Mr. Wollner indicated that there would be a chapter at both Camp Lilienthal and 

Camp Moore (formerly  Camp Royaneh) and made up of honor campers.  The chapter at Camp 

Lilienthal would be known as the ñLamatò tribe and the chapter at Camp Moore (Royaneh) would be 

known as the ñMaiduò tribe.  The purpose of the Order of the Arrow as stated at the meeting was 

for Camp promotions.  The application fee for the Order of the Arrow charter was a mere $10.00.  

Royaneh Lodge would become an official Order of the Arrow Lodge of Section 12 -B on February 25, 

1945 when National approved its charter and assigned the numb er 282.  The numbering of the 

Lodge was based on the sequence order of when the Lodges was chartered and not founded.  All 

persons who held membership in the lodge prior to February 25, 1945 were known as Charter 

Members.  As a service organization the roots of Royaneh Lodge date back to 1943.  

 

Arthur Myer, the first Eagle Scout in California (where he received the award in 1916 from the 

Bakersfield council) and a member of the San Francisco Council since 1923 helped organize the 

new lodge.  Six years ea rlier in 1938 the council had renamed Camp Royaneh to Camp Moore in 

honor of Charles C Moore, the former President of the San Francisco Council and Vice President of 

the Boy Scouts of America.  During this timeframe from 1938 until the early 1950ôs, the San 

Francisco council simply referred to their two permanent Scout camps (Moore and Lilienthal) as 

ñRoyaneh campsò.  Because the new lodge would have chapters at both Scout camps, the name 

chosen for the new lodge was ñRoyanehò to reflect the reference that the council used in 1944 for 

their camps.  Royaneh Lodge was not named after Camp Royaneh as it technically did not exist in 

the 1940ôs. 

 

The name Royaneh though came about in March of 1925 when SF Scout Executive Raymond O 

Hanson held a competition among the scouts to name their new summer camp in Cazadero.  A 

scout by the name of George Hart from San Francisco Troop 54 won the competition by submitting 

the name ñRoyanehò for the new camp.  George indicated that the meaning of the word ñRoyanehò 

came from the Iroquois Indians that meant ñcamp of joyò or ñMeeting place of the tribesò.  So the 

best translation, based on the interpretation of the boy that came up with the name Royaneh and 

also used for Royaneh Lodge Order of the Arrow means ñMeeting Place of the Tribesò. 

 

According to the Royaneh bylaws the totem used by Royaneh Lodge was a yellow arrowhead with 

the blue profile of an Indian chief centered upon it.  The totem is similar to the Indian head that 

was also used at both Camp Moore and Camp Lilientha l at that same time.  The Indian head patch 

used at the two camps was a left facing Indian head, but the Indian head used by Royaneh lodge 

would be a right facing Indian Head (possibly to distinguish it from the camp or the OA saying ñit is 

only rightò).  Before the Lodge was officially formed, the early members used the standard camp 

patch.  

 

The newsletter of Royaneh Lodge was known as the ñRoyanehanò and was first published in 

February of 1945 when the lodge received its charter.  In July 1947 members of Royaneh Lodge 

inducted the first 5 members of the Oakland Area Council into the Order of the Arrow.  Three 

months later in October, Royaneh Lodge would hold the first ever ordeal ceremony for the Oakland 

Council when 25 members became ordeal members.   
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Documents from 1949 indicated that the lodge held five conclaves (lodge gatherings) each year.  

The fall Business Conclave was held in October, the camp promotion Conclave was held in 

November, the annual banquet was held in January, the Camp Kick -Off Concl ave was held in May 

and the Order of the Arrow day was held in July up at Camp Moore (Royaneh).  Two of the five 

conclaves were social gatherings (Banquet & OA day) where lodge business could not be 

conducted.  

 

In January of 1952, Royaneh Lodge had the hon or of inducting a new lodge into the Order of the 

Arrow during ceremonies held at Camp Lilienthal in Marin County.  Thirty seven arrowmen from the 

Mt Diablo Council were inducted into the order of the arrow for a new lodge that would be known 

as OO -Yum -Bul i lodge 468 (merged with Swegedaigea #263 in 1994 to form Ut - in Silica Lodge 58).  

 

In 1954, Ed Dike was the first person in Royaneh Lodge history to be honored with the 

Distinguished Service Award.  The ñDSAò is the highest honor that the National Order of the Arrow 

can bestow upon a member.  Ed Dike was the nature director at Camp Moore/Camp Royaneh for 

many years as well as being a leader with Royaneh Lodge.  Five years later in 1958 Royaneh Lodge 

would dedicate the new Chiefs Room at Camp Royaneh in his honor.  During that same year, 

Royaneh Lodge chief Ross Heil designed the first pocket patch known as the F1.  Until that first 

pocket flap was released, neckerchiefs with patches indicated membership in the Royaneh lodge.  

Ross Heil would later become the  section chief in 1960.  

 

Larry Teshara, Royaneh Lodge Chief from 1962, was elected National Deputy Chief of the Order of 

the Arrow in 1963.  

 

Twenty years after it was formed in 1944, the last official business of Royaneh Lodge took place on 

December 13 th , 1964 at a joint banquet and business meeting held at Goodmanôs restaurant in 

Oaklandôs Jack London Square.  Royaneh Lodge 282 and Machek NôGult Lodge 375 would merge to 

form the new lodge of the SFBAC.  

 

 

 
 

Rock from hillside at Camp Royaneh, 2015  
Founding  location of Royaneh Lodge  282  
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Oakland Area Council  
 

Scouting in Oakland officially began on September 16, 1910 when the first ñScoutò 

troop was formed by A. Patterson Jr of Telegraph Ave.   In an article from the 

Oakland Tribune, ñThe boys will have regular Scout uniforms and if possible gunsò.  

It is not known how many boys actually signed up with the first Scout troop in 

Oakland however the following month the First Presbyterian church at 26th and 

Broadway formed the first Scout patrol in Oakland consi sting of five boys; Chris 

Milsich, Alfred Wollitz, Arthur Cross, Max Nye and G.  Boyes with LN Brasfield as its first 

scoutmaster.   

 

ln November of that same year, the Scouting movement was formerly launched in Oakland under 

the American Boy Scout movemen t.  Colonel George Dickie, superintendent of playgrounds for the 

Oakland Public schools was the President of the committee.  Plans were also made for a permanent 

headquarters in Oakland.  

 

Only a couple months later in January of 1911, the Oakland and San F rancisco Boy Scouts 

disassociated themselves from the American Boy Scouts due to its funding practices and military 

associations and became associated with the California Boy Scouts that was also formed in San 

Francisco.  For some unknown reason this too w as short lived as George Dickie led a committee for 

establishing an Oakland contingent of Boy Scouts of America shortly thereafter.  

 

On March 11, 1911 the Boy Scouts of Oakland held a meeting to consider the future plans of the 

organization.  The members a greed to withdraw from the California Boy Scouts and to apply for a 

charter from the Boy Scouts of America, of which Ernest Thompson Seton was one of the foremost 

men.  As new members of the Boy Scouts of America, both the Oakland Scouts and the San 

Franci sco Scouts celebrated by holding a combined camp -out near the end of March.  This 

relatively small group of Oakland and San Francisco Scouts camped as a group on the grounds of 

the Francis M Smith reserve in the Oakland hills for the first time.  Each scou t was outfitted with a 

"billy" which consisted of a tin bucket with a lid in which was carried a knife, cup, spoon and 

provisions for two days and a blanket.  Lieutenant Edward Kendrick of the Oakland Scouts was in 

command and instructed the new recruits i n the ways of camp life and how to light fires and cook 

their foods.   

 

Five years later on Friday June 2, 1916 a meeting was held at the Hotel Oakland where the Boy 

Scouts of Oakland and Piedmont were formerly organized as the Oakland -Piedmont Council of the 

Boy Scouts of America.  Supervising the meeting was Harry Cross, National Field Scout 

Commissioner of the Pacific Coast District.  The Oakland Council was the third ñFirst Classò council 

in California to be formed after the Los Angeles Council and the Berkeley Council were created.  To 

lead the Oakland Scout Council was Volkert (VO) Lawrence, the President of the Oakland Rotary 

club, who would serve as its first President and H. Richard Wilson was tapped to serve as the first 

Scout Executive.  Wilson fo rmerly was a Physical Education teacher at UC Berkeley before 

becoming the first Scout Exec of the Berkeley Council in January of the same year.  

 

In January of 1919, the Oakland Council seeking a permanent location for both a summer camp 

and week -end camp site was able to purchase a 28 acre section of the 474 acre Francis M Smith 

Reserve in the Oakland hills for $20,000 (roughly $800 per acre).  As scouting continued to grow 

additional buildings were added to Camp Dimond including a 5000 sq ft mess hall, a 2000 seat 

cement amphitheater and a 300,000 gallon swimming pool.  Camp Dimond was known as one on 

the premier scout camps of the west coast from 1919 until the late 1940ôs with over 3000 scouts 

per year using the facilities.  

  



April 15 , 201 7 © Achewon Nimat Lodge 282  |  www.achewonnimat.org  Page 12  of 108  

 

In 1922, three years before the Knights of Dunamis was founded by the San Francisco council, one 

of the first Eagle Scout associations in the nation was formed at Camp Dimond.  The Eagle 

association in Oakland was known as the ñTribe of the O-hit -e-kahò and had tribes in California and 

New York.   It is our firm belief that the idea to create an Eagle Scout association in San Francisco 

originated from Scout Exec Homer Bemiss.  Bemiss and Hanson  were good friends and they shared 

their ideas of Scouting (Bemis s was the Assistant Scout Exec for Hanson  from 1917 until 1919)  

Hanson  took the Eagle association idea, expanded it and created the Knights of Dunamis for the 

San Francisco Council in 1925.  By 1935  the Knights of Dunamis was officially designated as part  of 

the scouting program.  The Eagle association in Oakland was disbanded and became one of the 

Chapters of the Knights of Dunamis  (Chapter 40) .   

 

In October of 1925 with the need for additional camping facilities, the Oakland Council was able to 

acquire the assets of a former logging camp near Yosemite.  The new mountain camp would be 

called Dimond -O as the new camp was the ñOutpostò for Camp Dimond. 

 

During the 1938/39 Worldôs Fair held on Treasure Island in the middle of San Francisco Bay, Camp 

Dimond w as used as the local campground for Troops visiting the fair.  Five years later i n 1944 the 

East Bay Automotive Machinists Union 1546 donated 646 acres of land south of Livermore for use 

as a Scout Camp.  The new Oakland camp would be known as Ranchos Los Mochos.  

 

All three camps, Camp Dimond  in Oakland , Dimond -O near Yosemite and Rancho Los Mochos 

outside of Livermore were instrumental in the growth of the Order of the Arrow in the Oakland 

Council.  But for Machek NôGult lodge, Camp Dimond was the birthplace for the Order of the Arrow .  

 

 

 
 

Rock from creek  bed  at former Camp Dimond grounds, 2015  

Founding location of Machek NôGult Lodge 375  
  



April 15 , 201 7 © Achewon Nimat Lodge 282  |  www.achewonnimat.org  Page 13  of 108  

Machek NôGult Lodge (Founded July 1947) 
 

Thirty -one years after the Oakland Area Council was organized, 

the Order of the Arrow in Oakland was established on July 1, 

1947.  Because the Oakland Council did not have a lodge, the 

first arrowmen of the new lodge were actually inducted in other 

council s including Royaneh lodge, the San Francisco chapter of 

the Order of the Arrow.  The first five members of the new lodge 

that would be called Machek NôGult Lodge 375 were Ralph 

Clement, John Musgrove, Paul Meier, Bill Hopachuk and Oakland District Executiv e Don MacDougal.   

It is not currently known where these members took their ordeals.  

 

On Saturday October 5, 1947, twenty - five Scouts and leaders were inducted into the Machek 

NôGult Lodge by members of Royaneh Lodge during ceremonies held in Redwood Region al park in 

the Oakland hills.  Afterwards a dinner was held in the mess hall at Camp Dimond.  Some of the 

new arrowmen included BC Cain, Dr. Robert Adams, future Machek NôGult lodge chief Frank 

Zografos and Bob Delaruelle.  

 

The totem for the new lodge was selected to be a Golden Bear as some of the original members of 

the new lodge were students at UC Berkeley.  When the initial bylaws of the new lodge were 

created in October of 1947 the original name created was ñNôGult Machekò and not ñMachek 

NôGultò.  This difference in name was due to how its meaning was interpreted, ñNôGult Machekò 

stood for Bear Golden whereas ñMachek NôGultò stood for Golden Bear which is what the lodge 

name was meant to be.  The bylaws were changed to correct the name and the first l odge charter 

issued by the National Order of the Arrow Committee in January of 1948 indicated the correct 

spelling and meaning of the lodge.  

 

The first official meeting of the Machek NôGult lodge took place in January 1948 at the Camp 

Dimond mess hall when  Paul Meier was elected Chief of the new lodge.  Machek NôGult lodge would 

become of member of Section 12 -B of the Order of the Arrow that also included the following 

lodges: Royaneh #282 (San Francisco), Kaweah #379 (Alameda), Stanford -Ojato #207 (Stanfor d), 

Mow -A-Toc #262 (Eureka) and Swegedaigea 263 (Napa).  

 

On October 31, 1948 the first annual business meeting of Machek NôGult Lodge was held in the 

Camp Dimond mess hall.  This would also be the last meeting the lodge would ever hold at Dimond 

due to the  forced sale of the camp to the Oakland Public Schools.  At this meeting seven new 

ordeal members were inducted into the Order and members of Royaneh Lodge would stage the first 

brotherhood ceremony.  During its first year as a lodge 78 members were induct ed into Machek 

NôGult.  With the closing of Camp Dimond at the end of 1948, Camp Dimond-O and Los Mochos 

became the two locations for ceremonies and ordeals by the Lodge.  Camp Dimond will always be 

known as the location where Machek NôGult lodge was founded.  Since Dimond -O could not be used 

during the winter months, Los Mochos was used as the main site for ceremonies between October 

and May . 

 

The Arrow Point, the official newsletter of Machek NôGult lodge was first published in January of 

1949 as a way to  provide additional communication to its members.  Some sixty years later, the 

Arrow Point continues to be the newsletter of our combined lodges.  

 

In July of 1949, Machek NôGult Lodge had the honor of inducting a new lodge into the Order of the 

Arrow durin g ceremonies held at the Redwood Area Councilôs Camp Tish Tang along the banks of 

the Trinity River in Humboldt County.  Machek NôGult helped setup the ceremonies site and 

inducted the first 18 members into the new lodge that would be known as Mow -A-Toc lo dge 262.   
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Sometime during this same year  of 1949, OA founder E. Urner Goodman had constructed a stone 

fireplace at his house in Bondville, Vermont.  A number of OA Lodges from across the Country sent 

rocks to Goodman that were embedded in the fireplace with the name or number of their Lodge.   

 

Although Machek NôGult does not have their name on one of the rocks, one of the rocks in the 

fireplace is inscribed with the Dimond -O logo <O>.  It is assumed that members of either the 

Oakland Area Council or Machek NôGult submitted the Dimond-O rock.  Whichever  the case maybe, 

Dimond -O is a permanent fixture in the Goodman fireplace.  The Dimond -O rock is located directly 

below the center of the mantel and above the fireplace opening.   

 

On October 6, 1951, a vigil ceremony was held at Camp Royaneh by Royaneh Lodge where Don 

MacDougal received the first Vigil honor in Machek NôGult lodge.  Don MacDougal was the main 

motivating force behind the founding of Machek NôGult in 1947 when the first 25 members were 

inducted into the Order of the Arrow and for his efforts he was honored as being the first vigil 

member of Machek NôGult lodge.  At this same time the lodge had expanded from those initial 25 

members in 1947 to 249 arrowmen by the end o f 1952.  

 

In the summer of 1953, Machek NôGult brotherhood member Ed Crinnion was involved in one of 

the most iconic scout paintings of all time.  It was at the National Jamboree in Irvine, CA that artist 

Normal Rockwell was staging a photo -shoot for a new painting.  An actor was portraying a 

scoutmaster watching over his troop of sleeping scouts.  The scouts sleeping in the made -up tents 

were all from Troop 95 of the Oakland Council including young scout Howard Lincoln (the President 

of the Seattle Mariners  baseball team).  Ed was also a member of Troop 95 and was helping his 

troop during the photo -shoot.  The actor though came wearing the wrong type of shoes that could 

not be used in the picture.  Ed did his good deed and lent the boots off his own feet to the actor.  

The iconic Rockwell painting that was completed a few years later would be known as ñThe 

Scoutmasterò.  But the boots that are worn by the Scoutmaster in the painting are from Machek 

NôGult member and Eagle Scout Edmund Crinnion. 

 

One of the hi ghlights of 1954 was the Area 12 -B conclave held up in the town of Eureka.  Thirty -

seven arrowmen from Machek NôGult gathered for the two-day event.  The transportation to and 

from the conclave was courtesy of a United States Coast Guard plane which was fl ying an 

orienteering flight from Oakland to Eureka.  At the conclave Jim Johnson from Hayward was elected 

Area 12 -B section chief.  In October of the same year the members of Machek NôGult lodge labored 

hard to develop the council property across the creek  from the main gate at Los Mochos.  This 

location would become known as Cardiac Hill due to the steep climb that was necessary to get to 

the site.   

 
Ordeal and Brotherhood ceremonies would be held atop the second rock outcropping for forty years 

from 1954  until the 1990ôs.  For years smudge pots were placed along the trail that led the way up 

to the rock and illuminating the entire hillside.  In November of the same year another plane ride 

took 24 members on an excursion over Yosemite and Camp Dimond -O. 

 

According to the Arrow Point newsletter from January of 1957, the first pocket flap (known as the 

F1) was issued by Machek NôGult for a mere $0.40 a piece (the same patch can be found on eBay 

these days for over $150).  During January 1957 it was decided to  divide Machek NôGult into two 

Chapters.  Chapter 1 would handle the Sunset, Lake, Central & Castle districts (the Oakland area) 

while Chapter 2 would handle the Chabot, Arroyo, Redwood, South, Twin Valley & Mission Peak 

districts  (Castro Valley, Hayward, Fremont & Pleasanton area) .  This was done to make the lodge 

operations easier to handle.   
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The legend of Eden Chapter  is believed to have begun during this same time period when a group 

of Scouters upset over the new chapter alignment tried to create their own chapter  in the lodge.  

Eden was not a council district but an area known as Eden Township  and located in present day 

Hayward near the area of Chabot Community College . The township was incorporated into the City 

of Hayward in the late 1950ôs.  The members of the new chapter went as far as to create their own 

pocket patch  using the distinctive totem of the golden bear with Eden Chapter proudly displayed.  

The chapter did not succeed and its members  continued on in the Lodge.  The patch created for 

Eden Chapter has become one of the rarest Lodge Patches associated with Machek NôGult.  Some 

patch collectors have even suggested that the Eden Chapter patch predates the first Machek NôGult 

patch and was the first pocket flap in the entire state of Califo rnia.  We have never been able to 

find any proof supporting that theory.  

 

In 1962, members Jerry Abad, Jim Bowles and other Machek members performed a vigil ceremony 

at Fort Ord  during a special ceremony.   

 

Machek NôGult once again had the honor of inducting a new lodge into the Order of the Arrow when 

over the weekend of April 24, 1964 at Camp Stuart near Saratoga, the Lodge inducted 88 youth 

and 9 adult members into Miwok Lodge 439 of the Santa Clara Council.  Two months earlier , on 

February 10 , th e Oakland Council and the San Francisco Council merged forming the San Francisco 

Bay Area Council .  The induction ceremony for Miwok Lodge would be one of the final tasks of 

Machek NôGult lodge before it merged with Royaneh Lodge. 

 

Seventeen years after Ma chek NôGult was formed at Camp Dimond in the Oakland hills in 1947, the 

last official business of the lodge took place on December 13 th , 1964 at a joint banquet and 

business meeting held at Goodmanôs restaurant in Oaklandôs Jack London Square.  Royaneh Lodge 

282 and Machek NôGult Lodge 375 would merge forming the new Order of the Arrow lodge of the 

SFBAC. 
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San Francisco Bay Area Council  
 

In the early 1960's former United States Senator William F. 

Knowland chaired a study commission representing the nine bay 

area councils regarding a plan to merge all of the Scout Councils 

of the San Francisco Bay Area into one large council.   

 

The council s involved were:  Alameda Council (Council #22, 

organized 1917), Marin Council (Council #35, organized 1923), 

Mt Diablo Council (Council #23, organized 1951), Oakland Area Council (Council #21, organized 

1916), Piedmont Council (Council #42, organized 1921 ), San Francisco Council (Council #51, 

organized 1917), Santa Clara Council (Council #55, organized 1929), San Mateo County Council 

(Council #20, organized 1932) and Stanford Council (Council #31, organized 1940).  Most of the 

nine Bay Area Councils disapp roved of the merge indicating it would do more harm than good for 

the scouts and the councils.  

 

Of the nine councils, only the Oakland Area Council and the San Francisco council voted in favor of 

a merge.  Between the two councils, the San Francisco Counci l was smaller and was less financially 

stable than the Oakland Council.  However it still made sense to merge the two councils into one 

larger council that could better support the needs of the Scouts.  

 

It is interesting to note that back in 1911, 52 year s before the two councils would merge and only 

one year after the Boy Scouts of America was founded in the United States, the first combined 

outing of the Oakland Scouts and the San Francisco Scouts took place in the hills of Oakland on 

land that eight yea rs later would ultimately become Camp Dimond, the first permanent Scout 

Camp of the Oakland Council.  One of the games that was played during that outing in 1911 

according to an article in the Oakland Tribune was ña war game where one group will try to 

surprise the other groupò, these days all scouts know that same game as Capture the Flag.  No 

doubt the two organizations had a close relationship since the start of Scouting in the Bay Area.  

 

Jump forward 50 years to Monday February 10, 1964 atop Yerba Buena  Island as the proud old 

blue -and -gold flags of the Oakland Area Council and the San Francisco Council were lowered and 

retired for the last time.  The retired council flags were folded and presented to Robert J. Matheison 

and Raymond Marks former Presiden ts of the Oakland and San Francisco Councils respectively.  

 

In their place, the two councils dedicated the new San Francisco Bay Area Council flag in a 

ceremony that united 30,000 Bay Area Scouts into one cohesive unit for the first time.  The 

ceremony, pi ning the San Francisco Council and Oakland Area Council, was held atop Tower Hill on 

Yerba Buena Island, a point midway between the two cities.  As the new flag, bearing the names of 

both cities was unfurled, Thomas Williams of the Oakland Area Council and  Bill Rothschild of the 

San Francisco Council tied a big square knot in a hawser to symbolize their unity.   

 

At 7:45 pm on the evening of February 10, BSA Region 12 Chairman Edward Mills called to order a 

meeting of nearly 500 volunteer Scout leaders at t he Edgewater Inn in Oaklandôs Jack London 

Square.  At the meeting the voting membership elected Arch Monson Jr as the new board President 

of the San Francisco Bay Area Council (SFBAC, Council #28) as well as eighty -six other board 

members and officers.  Ha rvey Price was selected as the first Scout Executive of the council as 

Price had been the former Scout Executive for the San Francisco Council.  Frank Dix, who had been 

the Scout Executive of the Oakland Area Council was named to a National Council positio n and 

moved to Florida.  With the adjourning of the meeting, the San Francisco Bay Area Council was 

officially formed.  
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Achewon Nimat Lodge (Founded December 1964)  
 

With the merging of the Oakland and San Francisco councils now complete, the merging of t he two 

Order of the Arrow Lodges of the former councils was set in motion.  During the course of the year, 

discussions were held at the executive level of the lodges to talk about the process of combining 

the two lodges.   One of the early decisions agreed upon was to break the new lodge into two 

chapters, the East Bay chapter (Machek NôGult) and the West Bay chapter (Royaneh). 

 

As was indicated  earlier , the first meeting &  banquet of Achewon Nimat lodge was held on Sunday 

afternoon, December 13, 1964 at Goodmanôs Restaurant in Oaklandôs Jack London Square.  The 

cost of the event was $3.75 and even included your dues for 1965.  The luncheon of Chicken, 

potatoes, rolls, salad  and dessert marked the official start of the new ñas yet to be namedò lodge of 

the San Francisco Bay Area Council.  

 

The banquet dinner was served at 2:00 pm but prior to that both Machek NôGult and Royaneh held 

their own final business meetings at 1:00 pm .  Following the dinner , a special lodge meeting was 

held  to vote for the new combined lodge chief and his officers.  Before the elections i t had been 

previously decided that the first lodge officers for chief and treasurer would come from the Machek 

NôGult chapter and the office rs for vice -chief and secretary would come from Royaneh  chapter .  The 

following year in 1966 the order would be reversed where Royaneh chapter would nominate the 

lodge chief and treasurer and Machek NôGult would nominate the vice-chief and secretary.   It 

wouldnôt be until the lodge election of 1967 that the positions for the lodge were fully open 

regardless of their previous lodge affiliation.  

 

With the merging of the two lodges, plans were made for the first Lodge business meeting to vote 

on many items.  On Sunday, February 28, 1965 Lodge Chief Bill Garvine called to order the first 

official business meeting of the new lodge.  The meeting was he ld on ñneutralò territory on 

Treasure Island where the lodge rules were discussed and adopted .  The bylaws of Machek NôGult 

were modified to reflect the new lodge and these bylaws were used as the basis for Achewon Nimat 

Lodge.   The signatures of the follo wing Arrowmen are included on the original copy of the approved 

Lodge R ules:  Jeff Baechler (Royaneh Lodge Chief -  1964), John Nichols (Royaneh Lodge Chief -  

1963), Dennis Haw (Machek NôGult Lodge Chief - 1964), Don Wilkinson (Machek NôGult 

Membership), Pa ul Meier Sr. (Machek NôGult Lodge Chief - 1947), Ralph W. Benson (Staff Adviser -  

1965), Rear Admiral Don Mckay (Lodge Adviser -  1965).  

 

More importantly the name and totems for the new lodge was also selected and agreed upon.  The  

name chosen was ñAchewon Nimatò which stands for ñBrothers Togetherò.  A design for the pocket 

patch was also selected at this meeting.  That first patch issued by the Lodge in May 1965 

contained a dark blue sky as a nod to Machek NôGult, a snow capped mountain representing Camp 

Dimond -O, tall Redwood trees from Camp Royaneh and water signifying the Pacific Ocean.  Paul 

Meier Jr. (whose father Paul Sr. was the first lodge chief of Machek NôGult in 1947) came up with 

the lodge name as well as the pocket patch design.   

 

Achewon Nim at would also use the totems from each of the two earlier lodges (the Bear from 

Machek NôGult and the Indian head from Royaneh) to symbolize the joining of the two lodges 

together.  Achewon Nimat is one of the few lodges in the Country that uses two totems .   

 

With the joining of the two lodges it was difficult at first to get agreements as to anything because 

members from both lodges, still upset over the merger, didnôt want to speak to one another.  In 

fact for the first year both lodges operated as separ ate lodges so compromises had to be made.   
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The first pocket patch issued by Achewon Nimat included a navy blue sky in honor of the Machek 

NôGult Lodge colors and the second patch (issued in October 1965) included a light blue sky in 

honor of the Royane h Lodge colors.  The name of the newsletter would continue to be called The 

Arrow Point which Machek NôGult founded back in 1949.  At the end of the first full year as a 

combined lodge, Achewon Nimat carried out seven ordeals with the induction of 400 new members 

and sent 35 members to the National Order of the Arrow conference in Bloomington, Indiana.  

 

Ordeals or service projects where held at each of the six council camps ( Dimond -O, Willits , Los 

Mochos, Loomer, Lilienthal and Royaneh ) using ceremony sites that had been previously used by 

the former Lodges.  The ceremony site at Los Mochos (known as Cardiac Hill) which had been 

created by Machek NôGult Lodge in the early 1950ôs and was one of the most spectacular ceremony 

sites of all the camps.  The site was located across from the entrance gate at Los Mochos on a 

hillside overlooking the canyon.   

 

As a Brotherhood candidate in the late 1970ôs I still vividly remember the hike down the main 

camp road at Los Mochos and looking across t he canyon to the hillside trail illuminated by the small 

smudge pots and the roaring fire atop the rock outcropping.  As we made our way up the trail, the 

giant rock was illuminated by the fire.  Mark Rickey, in the role of Meteu, was standing in front of 

the Brotherhood candidates with his large shiny buck knife drawn and pointing to the sky waiting to 

draw blood from the next candidate.  As I looked around, each of the candidates had a look of 

horror in their faces as Mark would draw  that cold steel knife  across our hands to signify the bond 

of brotherhood.  

 

In 1966 with Kirby Childres as Lodge Chief held six ordeals where 316 new members were inducted 

into the lodge.  During this same year, many of the districts merged in 1966 following the merger 

of coun cils two years earlier.  Live Oak village was formed by the merger of Central & Castle 

districts; Golden Acorn village was formed the merger of Lake and Sunset districts, Charrowood 

village was formed by the merger of Chabot, Arroyo and Redwood districts, Golden Gate was 

formed by the merger of Embarcadero, Mission Trails and McLaren Park districts, Serra was formed 

by the merger of Sunset west and Lake Merced districts, El Camino was formed by the merger of 

Twin Peaks and District 10 and Balboa was formed by the merger of Buena Vista and Richmond 

Districts.  

 

The annual Mikemosin (lodge business meeting) was held at the Snow building in Oaklandôs 

Knowland Park where Grant Young from Live Oak was chosen to be the Lodge Chief for 1967.  

During the meeting the lodge chose to purchase four teepees and that the use of the word 

ñChapter ò should be changed to ñVillage ò as village sounded more Indian - like.  

 

In February of 1967, a group of 40  arrowmen from Live Oak Village planted over 500 Ponderosa 

Pines at Willits Scout Reservation as a service project.  Many of those trees are still thriving today 

and providing shade for both the scouts and the local animal population.   During April the dance 

team performed at the new Oak land Coliseum complex for the Scout -O-Rama in front of 23,000 

attendees.  

 

In 1968 during Wayne Butlerôs administration, the lodge began to grow internally.  The Lodge rules 

and Lodge directory were established and finally the whole idea of disunity within the lodge due to 

the merger three years prior seemed to have disappeared.  The lodge held its annual banquet at 

the Claremont Hotel in Oakland and the lodge ended the year with 1500 members.  

 

Lodge Chief Steve Wilhite started the year off strong as many of the previous committee chairmen 

continued in their positions producing experienced and qualified leaders.  Procedures were setup 

for Brotherhood and Vigil ceremonies and the finishing touches  were added to the lodge rules.   
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An accident at C amp Royaneh during one of the ordeals sent Steve to the hospital and forced Vice-

chief  Mark McMullin to take on the reigns of the lodge for a period of time.  The year 1969 ended 

with an inspiring moment at the Lodge Banquet where outgoing chief Steve Wilhite was given a 

standing ovation.   

 

A number of major changes took place in the lodge  during 1970.  The wampum bead system was 

developed to show the history of an arrowmanôs activity in the lodge.  Each of the colored beads 

stood for a type of activity. Large Red beads were for each honor, small red beads were for each 

ordeal you attended,  white beads for each vill age meeting, black beads for each LECM and so forth. 

A listing of the beads and their colors is located in the appendix section of this document.  

 

I n October of 1970 the ñone per lifeò restricted Brotherhood Lodge Flap  was release d.  The flap was 

made available to all Brotherhood and Vigil members of the lodge and e ach patch was numbered 

and signed for.  A total of 604 Brotherhood patches were handed out between 1970 and 1979 

when all restricted patches were discontinued by the OA. Brotherhood patches #1, #282 and #375 

were never released due to their number significance and are still maintained in the Lodge 

archives.  The other major change to the lod ge was that the lodge year was changed from 

January/January to September/September to follow the typical school year.   1970 also marked the 

year in which the most arrowman were ever a part of Achewon Nimat when the year ended with 

1535 registered members.  

 

The following year Don Wilkinson became the first person from Achewon Nimat lodge to receive the 

Distinguished Service Award, the highest honor that the National Order of the Arrow can bestow 

upon its members.   The DSA honor was presented to Don at the 19 71 NOAC at the University of 

Illinois.  As 1972 came to a close, ñArea 12-Bò which our lodge and former lodges had been 

associated with since 1947 was reconfigured into Section W3A.  

 

In 1973 the lodge adopted a new Chapter system where the lodge was divided into three sections.  

The East bay (Live Oak, Golden Acorn, Charrowood), the West bay (SF area) and the South Bay 

(Hayward, Fremont, Twin Valley).  Ultimately the East Bay would take the name Machek NôGult 

Chapter, the South bay took the name Ohlone Chapter and the West bay took the name Royaneh 

Chapter.  

 

The first annual Winter Camp Awareness indoor seminar was held in January 1974 on Treasure 

Island in one of the old historic aircraft hangers.  The first WCA was attended by over 500  scouts 

from all over the Council where they were taught the fundamentals of Winter Camping.  In 1975, 

Achewon Nimat  was host to the W3A Section Conclave at Fort Cronk hite in Marin County .  The 

theme of the conclave was ñHeld Tightly Every Linkò and as a s pecial bonus , Dr. E Urner Goodman, 

founder of the Order of the Arrow, attended the Conclave.   

 

At the conclave, Achewon Nimat took home our first ever award for the Most Indian Lodge.  It was 

during this same awards ceremony  that Dr. Goodman presented Section W3A with the first ever 

National Standard Section Award.  Many of the arrowmen in attendance had the honor of getting 

their sashes signed and pictures taken with Dr. Goodman  including Machek NôGult Chapter chief 

Jerry Sakamoto .  Unfortunately Jerryôs mom washed his sash and along with it Dr. Goodmanôs 

signature.  

 

In September of 1975, the name of Machek NôGult chapter which had been around since the 

merging of the two lodges was renamed to Wekemnayon chapter.  Rumors swirled about why the 

name had to  be changed but t his would be the last time that the name Machek NôGult was officially 

used by Achewon Nimat . 
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In 1979 the first Winter Camp Awareness outdoor session was held near Lake Tahoe and this year 

also marked the beginning of the end for the old lodge paper records.  Starting in 1979 with the aid 

of a Radio Shack TRS -80 ñsupercomputerò, Don Wilkinson and the Lodge began the daunting task 

of converting all of the old Machek NôGult, Royaneh and Achewon Nimat membership records over 

into an electronic database.  Achewon Nimat was one of the first Lodges in the Country to convert 

our membership and financial record s into a n electronic database format.   Previously all 

membership records were contained on a 3 x 8 visual record cards  

 

At the 1980 lodge banquet held at the Presidio Officers club in San Francisco, Lodge members 

feasted on such  delicacies as Veal Cordon Bleu and BBQ ground round steak.  During the dinner 

events like blowing up balloons without the use of your hands and keeping a balloon aloft the 

longest provided fun and amusement for the on - lookers.  Winners of these  events won  a free tri p 

to the 1980 Section  Conclave  at Camp Parks .  Near the end of the year, the Order of the Arrow was 

saddened by the death of Dr. E Urner Goodman, founder of our Order.  

 

Live Oak village hosted a snow trip in Bear Valley at the start of 1981 that  was attended by both 

village and lodge members.  The lodge stayed at a three story cabin that could only be reached by 

hiking up a snow covered road for a mile.  Toboggans, inter - tubes and skiing at nearby Mt Reba 

was the activities for the weekend.  A gr eat spaghetti dinner with all the fixins was prepared by 

village adviser Adrian Stith.   

 

The 1981 NOAC that year was held in Austin, Texas at the University of Austin.  Our Lodge had a 

contingent of about 14 people and we traveled to NOAC in two vans (Bill  Parkerôs Orange Pumpkin 

and another van).  For whatever reason, the Pumpkin didnôt have any air conditioning and our trip 

during the summer took us through Barstow, California (one of the hottest places on Earth).  As 

luck would have it, in addition to no  air conditioning the drive train on the Pumpkin broke while we 

were in Barstow.  So the contingent had to wait as Bill looked for a place to get the Pumpkin fixed.  

Nothing like breaking down in Barstow during August.  We made it to Austin on time where w e 

stayed in the 10 story dormitory building at UOA (also not air conditioned).  

 

In 1982 with the chapter system failing it was decided to discontinue it altogether in lieu of the 

village system.  Ten years after hosting our first conclave at Fort Cronkite, Achewon Nimat would 

host its second conclave in 1985 at the San Francisco Presidio with the theme of ñService, Tradition 

& Honorò.  Over 125 members attended to help the lodge in its duties and Shepherd Hendrix from 

Live Oak Village served as the  Conclave Chairmen.   In September a new unrestricted brotherhood 

patch was released.  The patch used the new updated lodge patch design but would have a red 

border.  

 

In 1986, to help the OA program in Oakland and San Francisco, and to comply with National policy, 

the lodge re - instituted the chapter system.  Live Oak and Golden Acorn Villages merged to form 

the Oakland Chapter, who called themselves Achewon Tulpe (Strong Turtle).  Golden Gate, Mission 

Trails, and Sierra Villages merged to form the San Franci sco Chapter, to be called Royaneh.  The 

three other villages remained the same and were allowed to continue using their Indian names 

(Tres Ranchos was Amangi Nechochwen, Twin Valley was Seunen  Paschengink and Mission Peak 

remained as Ohlone).  The lodge al so attained the highest score among all the 69 Western Region 

Lodges in the Lodge Achievement Program during 1986.  

 

In 1990, the lodge celebrated its 25 th  anniversary and also issued a replica of our original lodge 

flap with ñ25ò added to it.  Requirements were put on the flap, much like the National OAôs 75th  

Anniversary Award.  1990 Also marked the first time in 25 years that the lodge was unable to 

achie ve the National Honor Lodge Award.  This began a time of rebuilding for the lodge.  
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The annual lodge fellowship weekend known as the Mikemosin, was renamed to Achiefest in 1992.  

That same year the lodge also sent a larger contingent to the National Orde r of the Arrow 

Conference (NOAC) which was held in Knoxville, Tennessee and issued the first NOAC specific lodge 

flap.  

 

In 1993 the lodge continued to grow and prepare for the Conclave and NOAC.  1994 was a banner 

year for us as we won our first ever Concl ave Award at the Alameda Naval Air Station.  The lodge 

had its first Section Officer in 15 years when Jeremy Davis was elected to the section.  We also 

sent the largest contingent in the section to NOAC.  

 

Like good fermented grape juice, 1995 was an even b etter year.  The lodge hosted the W3A 

Conclave at Camp Parks and won our second consecutive Conclave Award.  The attendance was 

great throughout the year, and continued our streak of National Honor Lodge recognition.  As this 

was our 30 th  anniversary year,  the Lodge issued replicas of the Machek NôGult and Royaneh flaps to 

members who met a participation requirement.  

 

1996 was the year in which we ended a 20 -year Most Indian Lodge Award drought.  To top off yet 

another great conclave, we again won the Concl ave Award, making it three years straight, we had 

another member become a section officer, Ken Morton, and we sent another large contingent to 

NOAC at Indiana University.  

 

In 1997 Jeremy Davis became Section W3A chief.  Achewon Nimat won its fourth Conclav e Award 

in a row and our second consecutive Most Indian Lodge Award, but lost our Indian Handball 

championship.  During this year, 2 more members of our lodge became section officers, Rocky 

Fernandez and Ed Smith.  

 

In the duration of 1998 through 2000 we continued with our streak of winning Conclave and Most 

Indian Lodge Awards.  In 2000, the lodge dance team achieved its long term goal of winning the 

Indian Dance competition and taking home the coveted (and enormous) Dance Trophy.  

 

2002 proved to be an ou tstanding year for the lodge.  We brought our streak of winning the 

Conclave Award to nine straight years, when we hosted the W3A Conclave at Camp Royaneh.  This 

same year Dominic Pascucci was elected Western Region Chief, the second national officer in th e 

history of  our Lodge (Larry Teshara was National vice chief in 1961  from Royaneh Lodge ) . 

 

In 2003, our streak of winning the Conclave Award was brought to an end when the Lodge placed 

third at the Conclave at Roaring Camp Railroads in Felton, CA.  Matt Griffis who was Lodge Chief in 

2001 & 2002 was elected Western Region Chief, marking the first time ever that any lodge in the 

country has had back - to -back national officers.  The lodge commemorated this event by issuing a 

special lodge flap.  

 

In 2004 the lodge took second place at the Conclave, which was held at the Santa Cruz County 

Fairgrounds in Watsonville.  In the summer of 2004 the lodge sent a contingent of 10 members to 

NOAC, which was held at the Iowa State University.  At the conference, the stan ding Western 

Region Chief resigned from his position due to personal reasons and the National Chief appointed 

Matt Griffis to finish the term.  For their service to the Order of the Arrow, Dominic Pascucci and 

Matt Griffis both received the Distinguished S ervice Award.  

 

In 2006 Achewon Nimat Lodge joined the online world when our Web site ñAchewonNimat.orgò was 

created and launched by Lodge Adviser Charles Hoffman.  2006 also saw us winning our tenth 

conclave award when the conclave was located at Cutter Sc out Reservation.   
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In 2008 eleven arrowmen from Achie participated in the ArrowCorps 5  project in the Shasta -Trinity 

Mountains.  The arrowmen spent a week working on the Pacific Crest trail and assisting the 

National Forest service.  The following year when Achewon Nimat hosted the 2009 Conclave at 

Camp Royaneh we took home the coveted Conclave award for an astonishing 11 th  time.  

 

In 2010 during the centennial celebration of the Boy Scouts of America, Achewon Nimat celebrate d 

45 years as a combined lodge and 66 years since our founding lodges were formed.  One of the big 

events of the year that the lodge was involved with was the Northern California Jamboree that was 

held at the Alameda County Fairgrounds in Pleasanton.  Over 20,000 Scouts, Leaders and the 

public participated in this three day event to celebrate the 100 th  anniversary of Scouting.  

 

At the Section Conclave held at the Presidio of Monterey, Achewon Nimat Lodge Chief Indy Nelson 

was voted as the new Section Chief o f the W3S section for the 2011 -2012 scouting year.  Indy 

would become the 9 th  member of our lodge to lead the section since its founding in 1965.  

 

2011 was a sad year for our Lodge as we lost two dedicated and longtime great members, Bill 

Parker and Jim Sm ith.  In honor of their dedication and commitment to the ideals of scouting and 

the Order of the Arrow, a NOAC Conferenceship Fund was setup in Bill Parkers name.  This 

endowment fund is setup in perpetuity to recognize Billôs passion for NOAC and his years of service 

to Scouting and the Order of the Arrow.  The purpose of the endowment fund is to provide monies 

toward a youthôs participation in the National Order of the Arrow Conference.  

 

In October of 2011 after months of discussions, the SFBAC and the M t. Diablo/Silverado Councils 

announced that our two great councils would be merging sometime in 2012 pending the outcome 

of the stakeholders meeting on August 29 th , 2012.  Along with the merging of the Council so too 

would Achewon Nimat Lodge and Ut - in Sel ica Lodge combine their membership into one strong 

Lodge.  Although almost two years of discussion and planning went into the anticipated merger, on 

August 29 th , 91% of the SFBAC voted in favor of the merge while 60% of the voting members of 

the Mt Diablo Silverado Council voted not to unite .  Misleading information distributed by some of 

the MSDC members upset at the possible merger officially ended the creation of the Golden Gate 

Area Council.  Achewon Nimat would continue to serve as the Order of the Arrow Lodge for the San 

Francisco Bay Area Council.  

 

Also in 2011 the San Francisco Bay Area Council Campership Fund was started with a ñseedò gift 

from Achewon Nimat Lodge.  

 

In 2013 at the new Summit Bechtel Jamboree site in West Virginia, a building was dedicated to the 

Order of the Arrow which contains a giant fireplace that harkôs back to the late 1940ôs when E.  

Urner Goodman built a stone fireplace at his residence in Bon dville, Vermont.  Whatôs special about 

the fireplace is that it contains rocks provided by the different Lodges from across the Country.  

The rock from our council is inscribed with ñAchewon Nimat, San Leandroò and came from an 

outcropping of rocks located  at Wente Scout Reservation near the dam.  The fireplace at E. Urner 

Goodmanôs Brotherhood Barn next to his home residence in Vermont also contains a special rock 

from the Oakland Area Council inscribed with the symbol of Camp Dimond -O which closed in 197 8. 

 

In October of 2013 with the number of active arrowmen in the Lodge decreasing, a number of 

changes were instituted that affected the entire Lodge.  The villages of Amangi Nechochwen and 

Achewon Tulpe merged to form the Wekemnayon village (meaning New Br otherhood).  

Wekemnayon was one of the chapters in our lodge in the mid 1970ôs that encompassed the villages 

of Live Oak, Golden Acorn, and Charrowood.  So it was a good fit to once again use the 

Wekemnayon name.   
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The other major change was that the number of ordeals was reduced from three ordeals per year 

to two ordeals per year and the Klondike Derby snow camping adventure was canceled until more 

arrowmen become active.  At the 48 th  annual banquet, Lodge Chief Hans Mortimer resigned due to 

school commitments at UC Berkeley.  Vice -chief Ryan Shep odd  stepped up and was sworn in as the 

new lodge chief to complete the 2013 -2014 lodge year.  

 

Early in 2014, the NOAC centennial project for the 100 th  anniversary of the Order of the Arrow was 

begun which in cluded creating a booklet to document the history of our lodge . The second  portion 

of the project was the centennial crate to ho ld wood from our council camps to be burned at NOAC. 

The ashes would be comingled with the ashes from other lodges and given to attendees at NOAC 

as a memento.  The NOAC centennial crate from Achewon Nimat contained a sampling of wood 

from each of the council camps where our lodge has held ceremonies since 1944.  Redwood to 

symbolize the majestic tall trees from Camp Royaneh in Son oma County and Camp Lilienthal  in 

Marin County  where Royaneh Lodge was founded .  Cedar to symbolize the trees from the hills of 

Camp Dimond -O near Yosemite and pine to symbolize the local trees from Wente Scout 

Reservation in Willits, Rancho Los Mochos  in the Livermore hills  and Camp Dimond in Oakland 

where Machek NôGult was founded.   

 

2014 also marked the first time since the early 1990ôs that unit elections and tap outs would be 

held at summer camp.  The Scout Exec agreed to a plan that would designa te one camp staff 

member as the Order of the Arrow camp representative who would have the responsibility to 

promote the OA and run elections during summer camp.    

 

As 2014 is closed out, a special 50 th  anniversary banquet honoring the merging of Machek NôGult 

Lodge 375 and Royaneh Lodge 282 was planned for the end of the year.  On December 13, 2014 

exactly 50 years to the day that our two former lodges merged at Goodman ôs restaurant in 

Oakland, a simila r celebration was held once again  but this time at the Council Office  with over 100 

Arrowmen  in attendance .   

 

A special issue lodge flap available only at the dinner to commemorate the event was made 

available to those in attendance.  Former lodge adviser s, chiefs and arrowmen from both Machek 

NôGult and Royaneh were  in attenda nce and the theme of the night was  ñA Blast to our Past ò with 

memorabilia displays featuring both former lodges.  

 

The year 2015 began with the Winter Camp Awareness training session held aboard the USS 

Hornet in Alameda.  Over 260 Scouts and 40 arrowmen from the SFBAC and other councils 

attended the day - long event.  In preparation for the NOAC 2015 event, the Order of  the Arrow 

requested that all former or discontinued lodges provide a rock for the temporary centennial 

fireplace to be built at NOAC.  The rocks would then be transported to the Summit Bechtel Reserve 

to be incorporated in a permanent fireplace honoring a ll lodges of the Order of the Arrow.  Two 

rocks were obtained for Machek NôGult and Royaneh Lodges.  The rock for Machek NôGult was 

located on the former grounds of Camp Dimond in Oakland near the site of the amphitheater where 

Machek NôGult was founded.  The rock for Royaneh was located at Camp Royaneh down in the river 

bed of East Austin Creek where ceremonies were held at the camp.  The former lodge names were 

then inscribed in the two rocks by the Bras & Mattos Monument Company  of Hayward.  

 

In May the l odge youth leaders attended a weekend retreat at the Youth Retreat Center operated 

by the Diocese of Oakland in Pleasant Hill.  The two day event was used to discuss the operations 

of the lodge and planning the events of the next year.   The site offered a great location to hold the 

leadership training.  

  












































































































































































